
          

 

 

VERONA WALK 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

COLLIER COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

FEBRUARY 16, 2023 
10:00 A.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.veronawalkcdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
 

AGENDA 
VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Town Center at Verona Walk 
8090 Sorrento Lane 

Naples, Florida 34114 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

February 16, 2023 
10:00 a.m. 

 
A. Call to Order 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 

C. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………………..Page 1 

D. Establish Quorum 

E. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

F. Comments from the Public  

G. Approval of Minutes 

1. January 19, 2023 Regular Board Meeting.........................................................................................Page 2 

H. New Business 

1. Presentation by Solitude – Jeff Moding 

I. Old Business 

1. Discussion Regarding Communications/Town Hall Meeting  

2. Discussion Regarding Lake Bank Restoration 

J. Administrative Matters 

1. District Attorney Update 

2. District Engineer Update 

3. Field Inspector Update 

4. District Manager Update 

a. Financials……………………………………………………………………………………..Page 6 

K. Board Members Comments 

L. Adjourn 



Page 1



 

Page 1 of 4 
 

VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

JANUARY 19, 2023 
 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The January 19, 2023, Regular Board Meeting of the Verona Walk Community Development District 
(the “District”) was called to order at 10:00 a.m. at the Town Center at Verona Walk located at 8090 
Sorrento Lane, Naples, Florida 34114.  
 
B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
C. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published in 
the Naples Daily News on October 11, 2022, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Meeting 
Schedule, as legally required.  
 
D. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was determined that the attendance of the following Supervisors constituted a quorum and it was 
in order to proceed with the meeting: 
 
Chairperson Marilyn Czubkowski Present 
Vice Chairman Peter Monti Absent 
Supervisor Pat Clifford Present 
Supervisor Jack Hogan Present 
Supervisor  Vacant 

 
Staff members in attendance were: 
 
District Manager Kathleen Meneely Special District Services, Inc. 

General Counsel Greg Urbancic (via phone) Coleman Yovanovich Koester 

Field Inspector Bohdan Hirniak  

 
Also present were the following:  Mike Kurzawski, Herb Czeschin and Jeanne Condle. 
 
E. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
Ms. Meneely pulled the presentation from Advanced Aquatic and read a memo from Mr. Monti 
stating that the presentation would be made in April. 
 
F. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 

Page 2



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 
G. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  December 15, 2022, Regular Board Meeting  
 
The December 15, 2022, Regular Board Meeting minutes were presented for approval.   
 
A motion was made by Mr. Clifford, seconded by Mr. Hogan and passed unanimously approving the 
minutes of the December 15, 2022, Regular Board Meeting, as presented. 
 
H. OLD BUSINESS  
 1.  Update on Shoreline Trimming 
 
Ms. Czubkowski stated that Mr. Hirniak had received several quotes.  Mr. Hirniak went over 
proposals from Greenscape and Duvall.  Mr. Hirniak stated that Greenscapes’ proposal was for $8,400 
per treatment to take place 2x per year.  He added that this was half the cost of last year’s treatment 
and is quite competitive.  Discussion took place that the timing of the trimmings be at the request of 
the Field Inspector. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Clifford, seconded by Mr. Hogan and passed unanimously approving the 
Greenscapes’ proposal, noting that the timing should be at the request of the Field Inspector. 
 
 2.  Update on Trimming of Lakes 1 & 2 
 
Ms. Czubkowski indicated that the lakes were cut by Advanced Aquatics at a cost of $1,560.  She 
noted that Mr. Monti had gotten the bid as per the last meeting and she approved it due to the timing, 
even though it was $60 over the authorized price of $1,500. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Clifford, seconded by Mr. Hogan and passed unanimously ratifying the 
decision of the Chair to sign the agreement $60 above the authorized price. 
 
Ms. Czubkowski noted that everything looked really nice. 
 
 3.  Update on Solitude Takeover and Contact Information 
 
Ms. Czubkowski stated that she and Mr. Hirniak had met with Jeff Moding of Solitude.  Ms. 
Czubkowski noted that the ponds looked nice since they took over and Mr. Hirniak added that the 
animal life was good.  Ms. Czubkowski noted that Solitude would be available to give a presentation 
at the February 16, 2023, meeting and that the field staff were the same as was with Clarke Aquatics.   
 
I. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Presentation of Services from Advanced Aquatics – Mike Sweeney 
 
This item was pulled from the agenda. 
 
 2.  Discussion Regarding Lake 34 Fountain 
 
Ms. Czubkowski noted that a fountain was not previously installed, but now was.  She suggested, in 
the future, that a resolution be put in place for future installations to include timeframe and 

Page 3



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

maintenance.  Ms. Condle advised that the structures of the two fountains had different manufacturers 
and both had maintenance contracts. 
 
 3.  Discussion Regarding Pond Floats 
 
Mr. Hogan indicated that previous discussions with the Board resulted in the floats being painted, but 
we should also discuss building a stand on the bottom of the lake.  Mr. Hirniak advised that the HOA 
refused to do that and Ms. Condle added that sediment from the lake bottom was a concern for 
clogging the pipe as well as the fear of alligators for installation.  She also added that the floats were 
painted black in order to be least visible.  Mr. Hogan stated that the paint was chipping and Mr. 
Clifford said the floats would require some maintenance.  He asked if they were working and Mr. 
Hirniak stated there had been no complaints on water discoloration. 
 
 4.  Consider Applicants for Vacant Seat #4 
 
Ms. Meneely advised that letters of interest/resumes had been received from three residents – Michael 
Kurzawski, Alexander Shvartsman and Deborah Stramaglio.  As Mr. Kurzawski was in the audience, 
Ms. Meneely asked him to go over his background, which he did.  Ms. Czubkowski asked if Mr. 
Kurzawski was a registered voter in the District and he responded in the affirmative. 
 
After discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Clifford, seconded by Mr. Hogan appointing Michael 
Kurzawski to Seat #4, which expires in 2024. 
 

5.  Seat New Board Member 
 
Mr. Kurzawski took his seat at the dais and Ms. Meneely administered his oath of office. 
 

6.  Administer Oath of Office and Review Board Member Responsibilities & Duties 
 
Mr. Urbancic went over Board Member responsibilities and duties, including the Sunshine and Public 
Records laws. 
 
 7.   Consider Resolution No. 2023-01 – Appointing a Qualified Elector to Fill Seat #3 
 
Mr. Urbancic advised that the resolution was no longer needed, as the appointment was to Seat 4 not 
Seat 3, so it no longer applied. 
 
J. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 1.  District Attorney Update 
 
There was no District Attorney Update at this time. 
 
 2.  District Engineer Update 
 
There was no District Engineer Update at this time. 
 
 3.  Field Inspector Update 
 

Page 4



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

Mr. Hirniak advised that the lake levels were good and the spike rush was dying naturally.  He gave 
an update on a resident who reportedly cut into the spike rush.   
 
Mr. Hogan indicated that a community presentation was discussed at one time.  Ms. Czubkowski 
noted that Mr. Monti had felt that residents would not give it any attention.  Discussion ensued on the 
timing of such a presentation and it was decided that the Chairman would speak to the HOA president 
to find out if such a presentation was warranted and if so, what the best timing would be. 
 
 4.  District Manager Update 
 
Ms. Meneely presented the financials.  There were no questions from the Board Members. 
 
Ms. Meneely reminded the Board of the upcoming meetings: February 16, 2023, and March 16, 2023. 
 
Ms. Meneely advised of the available stipend for Board Members.  Mr. Kazawski waived the stipend. 
 
K. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
Ms. Meneely read Mr. Monti’s update regarding the littoral project. 
 
Mr. Clifford thanked Mr. Kurzawski for stepping up and serving the community by volunteering to 
serve on the CDD.  Ms. Meneely pointed out that all of the Board seats were now filled. 
 
L. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the Regular Board Meeting was adjourned 
at 11:30 a.m. on a motion made by Mr. Kurzawski, seconded by Mr. Clifford and that motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ __________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice-Chair 

Page 5



Verona Walk
Community Development District

   Financial Report For
January 2023

Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9


	Verona Walk Community Development District - February 16, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	January 19, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Financials




